### THE BOOK OF BISHOPS TAWTON

Sarah Amery, Judy Luxford and Linda Sanders

Bishops Tawton, a village nestling beneath Codden Hill and alongside the River Taw, has a varied and intriguing history ranging from a possible Bishop's Palace to a unique listed 'three seater' toilet.

This book does not attempt to offer a definitive history of BishopsTawton, but is a fascinating collection of living memories, photographs, historical facts, local folklore and family stories. Bishops Tawton is mentioned in the Domesday Book of 1086 as consisting of "80 villagers and 11 smallholders who have 100 ploughs." Until the mid twentieth century, like many other country parishes, it was a thriving and largely self-sufficient community despite being only 2 miles from the centre of Barnstaple. It continues to evolve and change in the twenty-first century.

This book offers a walk through the past, and presents a fascinating miscellany of photographs, facts, anecdotes and priceless memories of the past before they disappear forever.

#### **ABOUT THE AUTHORS**

In 2011, a group of Bishops Tawton ladies undertook to find out about the history of the parish. This started off as a small oral history project but due to the willingness and generosity of so many people it led to a fascinating collection of histories, photographs and memories. In 2012 an exhibition of the collection was held with over 600 people visiting. There were many subsequent requests to preserve and share the material in a book. Three of the group accepted the challenge!

**Judy Luxford** moved to Bishops Tawton in 2000 and worked for the NHS as a Speech and Language Therapist.

**Sarah Amery** was brought up locally in Newport and moved into the village in 1998 teaching at Bishops Tawton Primary School for thirteen years.

**Linda Sanders** is a North Devon farmer's daughter who moved into Bishops Tawton in 1984 and worked locally as a nurse and teacher.

# For a full listing of all Halsgrove titles, please visit our website at www.halsgrove.com

The Halsgrove Group includes DAA Halsgrove Ltd., Halsgrove Ltd. & Halstar Ltd. Registered in England & Wales Nos. 4136732, 6029724 & 6472636 at Halsgrove House, Wellington TA21 9PZ. Imprints: Halsgrove, Ryelands, Halstar, PiXZ Books & Halswood Journals. Halsgrove® is a registered trademark. Copyright© 2014

### **HALSGROVE TITLE INFORMATION**



Format:	Hardback, 160 pages, 297x210mm,
	with over 250 black and white photographs
Price:	£24.99
ISBN:	978 0 85704 239 2
Imprint:	Halsgrove
Published:	October 2014

Halsgrove Publishing, Halsgrove House, Ryelands Business Park, Bagley Road, Wellington, Somerset TA21 9PZ Tel: 01823 653777 Fax: 01823 216796 www.halsgrove.com e-mail: sales@halsgrove.com

## THE BOOK OF BISHOPS TAWTON



Frederick Dennis with Dick Copp on a Fordson tractor in 1949

> Albert Lock when stationed in London.



Example of a double-page spread.

through his own publishing company in London. By 1872 his methods had spread through Britain and to the far outreaches of the British Empire. In 1860 it was recognised by the English Education Department and by 1891 two and a half million children were receiving instruction in the sol fa. Many other coun-

#### Herner Church

Herner church sits within the parish of Bishops wren. The North Decon Journal of 9 August 1888 records, "The site of the place of sensitivity has here adartivity channer, from Hall in genesized adarts load eleven through the areava, upon the toncer adarts will containing on the barries of the toncer adarts will containing on the barries of the toncer adarts will be absound in the delightfully wooded tealing between the Tanu and the commanding entirence upor which Hall stands."

surch has some of the carvings taken er medieval chapel that was attached to d for another church in the parish was e time because the hamlets around and ere considered to be so far distant from



Little Hill, Cuckeo Lane, chapel at Herner. LITTLE HILL CHAPEL BEAFORD OLD ARCHIVE BMAGES © BEAFORD ARTS.



In 1941, Alf on his mother, Bessie's, k and his father Charlie Stevens. The Chapel was ittle further along the road on the lef

were unable to attend church. It is called a

ichester's diary records, Morcom and H. Bremridge took i anden, we then walked to Herner strice arrange sents etc in the alked down by the railway to call o sien Dearrie with opened, service at 3. I read 1st lesson. Preb Pigot preached. Large cor tion. Capital tea at school, 4.50. Fine."

There was a chapel at Herner at Little Hill Cuckoo There was a chapel at Herner at Little Fill Cuckoo ane. This was demolished in the late 70% so rearly 80%. Alfie Stevens remembers attending Sunday Shool here, he said there were about 20 children here each week and it ran from three o'clock in the iternoon. Tom Hartnol was a Sunday School teacher and his daughter played the organ.

#### Chapter 7 Health, Welfare and Community

"Toreadd all on anyon's decorpting and you can be been as a strained in the American Strain S

Bishops Tawton, like other villages, had its own Poer House at one time for vagrants and the destitute.







Bell ringers at Bishops Tawton 2014. Back row: Colin Dudley, Alan Watts, Robin Runnalls, Sarah Amery, Andrew Snell, Richard Amery. Front row: Alfie Stevens, Richard Tossel, Michael Beer (captain), Michael Snell.

A very old photo of a Victorian picnic on the side of Codden Hill.

